
 

 

 
 
 

Friday,  
6 November 2020 

2.00 pm 
 
 

Meeting of 
Estates and Property 

Committee 
Remote Meeting 

 
 

Contact Officer: 
Emilie Salkeld 

Democratic Services 
 

Cheshire Fire and Rescue Service, Sadler Road, Winsford, Cheshire, CW7 2FQ 
 

Tel: 01606 868304 
E-mail: emilie.salkeld@cheshirefire.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 
 

Cheshire Fire Authority 
Notes for Members of the Public 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Attendance at Meetings 
The Cheshire Fire Authority welcomes and encourages members of the public to be at its 
meetings and Committees.  
 
This meeting of the Fire Authority will be held by remote means, i.e. the meeting will not be 
taking place in person at Sadler Road, but will be hosted over the Internet, using Skype for 
Business, with participants located in a variety of places. 
 
The Government introduced legislation, due to the Coronavirus pandemic, that enables remote 
meetings to take place and the Fire Authority has adopted rules that allow and govern the way 
that remote meetings will work.  The rules can be accessed here. 
 
The meeting must be open to the public and press.  However, as the public and press cannot 
attend in person the Fire Authority is arranging for the meeting to be broadcast.  Final details 
about how to access the broadcast will be published on the website prior to the meeting. 
__________________________________________________________________ 
Questions by Electors 
Given the current situation, questions for the Chair of the Fire Authority can be submitted by 
email to DemocraticServices@Cheshirefire.gov.uk. Questions must be received at least five 
clear working days before the meeting takes place. 
 

Access to Information 
Copies of the Agenda are available on the Service’s website (www.cheshirefire.gov.uk).  A copy 
can also be obtained from Democratic Services via DemocraticServices@cheshirefire.gov.uk.  
 
The Agenda is usually divided into two parts. Members of the public are allowed to stay for the 
first part.  When the Authority is ready to deal with the second part you will be asked to leave 
the remote meeting, because the business to be discussed will be of a confidential nature, for 
example, dealing with individual people and contracts. 
 
This agenda is available in large print, Braille, audio CD or in community languages upon 
request by contacting; Telephone: 01606868414 or email: equalities@cheshirefire.gov.uk 
 
Recording of Meetings 
The Authority audio records its meetings. Please contact Democratic Services for a copy of the 
recording via DemocraticServices@cheshirefire.gov.uk.  
 

 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/392/contents/made
mailto:DemocraticServices@Cheshirefire.gov.uk
mailto:DemocraticServices@cheshirefire.gov.uk
mailto:equalities@cheshirefire.gov.uk
mailto:DemocraticServices@cheshirefire.gov.uk


 

 

 

MEETING OF THE ESTATES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
FRIDAY, 6 NOVEMBER 2020 
Time : 2.00 pm 
Remote Meeting - via Skype 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART 1 - BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED IN PUBLIC  
 

 

1 PROCEDURAL MATTERS  
 

 

1A Recording of Meeting  
Members are reminded that this meeting will be audio-recorded. 
 

 

1B Apologies for absence  
 

 

1C Declarations of Members' Interests  
Members are reminded that the Members’ Code of Conduct 
requires the disclosure of Statutory Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, 
Non-Statutory Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Disclosable 
Non-Pecuniary Interests. 
 

 

1D Minutes of the Estates and Property Committee  
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Estates and Property Committee held on Friday 13th March 2020. 
 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

ITEMS REQUIRING DISCUSSION/DECISION  
 

 

2 Service Housing  
 

(Pages 5 - 8) 

3 Fire Station Modernisation Programme  
 

(Pages 9 - 14) 

4 Chester Fire Station  
 

(Pages 15 - 20) 

5 Training Centre  
 

(Pages 21 - 26) 

6 Crewe Fire Station  
Appendix 1 to this report is to follow. 
 

(Pages 27 - 36) 

7 Wilmslow Emergency Services Facility  
 

(Pages 37 - 40) 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
Estates and Property Committee 

Friday, 13 March 2020 

 

1 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE ESTATES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE held on 
Friday, 13 March 2020 at HODs Meeting Room - Sadler Road, Winsford, Cheshire at 
10.00 am 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Karen Mundry (Chair), David Edwardes, Marilyn Houston, 
Stef Nelson, Stuart Parker, Peter Wheeler and independent (non-elected) member 
Lesley Thomson 
 
1   PROCEDURAL MATTERS  

  
A   Recording of Meeting  

 
 Members were reminded that the meeting would be audio recorded. 

 
B   Apologies for absence  

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Norman Wright. 

 
C   Declarations of Members' Interests  

 
 There were no declarations of Members’ interests. 

 
D   Minutes of the Estates and Property Committee  

 
 RESOLVED: 

 
That the minutes of the Estates and Performance Committee held on 28th 
March 2019  be confirmed as a correct record. 
 

2   CHESTER FIRE STATION - ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE  
 

 The Director of Governance and Commissioning introduced the report, which 
presented options to Members in relation to the enhancement of environmental 
performance for Chester Fire Station. The report asked Members to decide which 
option should be recommended to the Fire Authority.  
 
Ian Gammack, from IKG Consulting talked to Members about two options that would 
deliver environmental improvements for the new fire station. He stated the options 
did not initially create a station where the building would be zero carbon. However, 
an enhanced option 2 could do so. This was only in relation to regulated energy, i.e. 
the heat, light, hot water and ventilation of the fire station, not any other energy 
requirements.  
 
Members raised concerns about roof access. The consultant confirmed that the 
access to the roof was included in plans for option 2.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1D



Minutes 
Estates and Property Committee 

Friday, 13 March 2020 

 

2 
 

Members queried the impact on ventilation to the building due to the environmental 
improvements, in particular the impact of better insulation. It was confirmed that 
three rooms in the fire station had been identified as at risk of overheating. However, 
this risk was mitigated by improving the G Value of the glass and allowing the 
window to open sufficiently when the room temperature needed to be regulated. 
 
The consultant also discussed how the environmental improvements made at 
Chester Fire Station were being considered for Crewe Fire Station. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
[1] the enhanced Option 2, as noted within the report, be recommended to 

the Fire Authority. 
 
NOTE: Members did not wish to go into private session to discuss the figures 
contained in Item 5. They took the additional information into account. 
 

3   FIRE STATION MODERNISATION PROGRAMME - PROGRESS REPORT AND 
FUNDING  
 

 The Director of Governance and Commissioning introduced the report which 
provided information on the progress made with the Fire Station Modernisation 
Programme (the Programme) and sought agreement from Members to secure the 
release of further capital funding for the Programme.  
 
The Group Manager, Blue Light Collaboration delivered a presentation on the works 
at Bollington and Tarporley Fire Stations completed during the Year Zero phase of 
the Programme. Members noted the improvements made to the fire stations and 
how their on-call availability had increased due to new facilities within the fire 
stations.  
 
The Director of Governance and Commissioning highlighted the Station 
Modernisation Delivery Schedule, attached as Appendix 1 to the report. He 
explained that the actual spend during Year Zero and the expected spend during 
Year 1 were higher than anticipated and the projected overall costs of the 
Programme was likely to be higher than the approved £8.5M budget. He indicated 
that the rest of the £8.5M allocated budget needed to be made available in order for 
the Programme to progress as the initial £3.5M was now almost entirely committed. 
 
Members queried whether an audit was considered to show what equipment and 
appliances would need replacing. The Director of Governance and Commissioning 
confirmed that provisions were in place at the start of the Programme to ensure the 
fire stations did not reach the same conditions as they were before works started.  
 
Members noted that with government requirements such as the use of electric 
vehicles, further funding would be required to ensure infrastructure was available at 
fire stations. The consultant confirmed that it would be difficult to accommodate 
these requirements without capital funding from the government. 
 
RESOLVED: That 

Page 2



Minutes 
Estates and Property Committee 

Friday, 13 March 2020 

 

3 
 

 
[1] the Fire Station Modernisation Programme – Progress Report and 

Funding be noted; and 
 
[2] officers secure the release of further capital funding for the Station 

Modernisation Programme. 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE FIRE AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF: ESTATES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
DATE: 6TH NOVEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE AND COMMISSIONING 
AUTHOR: ANDREW LEADBETTER 

 

SUBJECT: SERVICE HOUSING 

Purpose of Report 

1. To provide an update on the programme to refurbish the service houses and to 
confirm progress with ancillary matters relating to the service houses. 

Recommended: That Members; 

[1]  Note progress. 

Background 

2. The Fire Authority owns service houses in five locations (Congleton, Knutsford, 
Northwich, Stockton Heath and Winsford).  All of the houses were originally 
used by staff operating the day crewing duty system.  However, staff occupying 
the service houses in Knutsford and Stockton Heath now work the on-call duty 
system.  Staff occupy the service houses under a license.  Staff working the 
day crewed duty system pay a subsidised license fee. Other staff pay a higher 
license fee.  

3. The condition of the houses had deteriorated over time. Their upkeep had, due 
to budget constraints, been quite piecemeal.  However, the overall the 
maintenance of the houses costs was costing more than the rental income. 

4. This Committee considered a report in March 2019 that was concerned with the 
creation of a programme to refurbish the service houses (and other ancillary 
matters).  This ultimately led to the Fire Authority approving the sale of five 
service houses that were considered to be surplus to requirements.  The report 
in March 2019 mentioned the following activities associated with the 
refurbishment programme: 

 Confirmation of Service need 
 Description of the Service’s standard 
 Establishment of a budget requirement 
 Delivery of an end to end process for licences 
 Preparation of a new licence agreement 
 Sale of surplus houses on the open market to create a fund 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Information 

Works To-Date 

5. Investment in the service houses has been considerable during 2019-20 and 
2020-21.  The following works have been delivered as part of the refurbishment 
programme: 

 Lofts of all houses insulated (including loft ventilation) 
 Full refurbishment of 2 houses in Knutsford (including new boilers, 

kitchens and bathrooms as well as roofing work) 
 Full refurbishment of 2 houses in Congleton (including new boilers, 

kitchens and bathrooms as well as roofing work) 
 All flat and pitched roofs replaced on Northwich houses (including 

asbestos removal, soffits sealed, cladding on porches and replacement 
of steel posts) 

 Pitched roofs replaced on 9 houses in Knutsford (including asbestos 
removal) 

 Pitched roofs replaced on 2 houses in Stockton Heath 
 14 boilers replaced 
 12 new kitchens installed 
 5 new bathrooms installed 
 A number of sprinklers systems removed and made safe 

 
6. Whilst this is a considerable list of works, it highlights the fact that a significant 

proportion of the funds that we hoped would be spent on refurbishment works, 
e.g. replacement kitchens and bathrooms have had to be spent on maintenance 
works, e.g. replacement roofs.  This has, inevitably, slowed down the 
refurbishment of the service houses. 

Sales of Service Houses 

7. So far two service houses have been sold, with the sale of one other understood 
to be imminent.  The remaining two service houses are proving difficult to sell 
and discussions are ongoing with the agents about how these properties can 
be successfully marketed. 

Processes and Documentation 

8. Officers have reviewed the processes and documentation associated with the 
management of the service houses.  This has involved the licensees.  This work 
has led to a better understanding of responsibilities and expectations.  A new 
license has been created, as well as a residents handbook.  A dedicated place 
has been created on the Intranet. 

Financial Implications 

9. One of the actions mentioned in paragraph 4 was the establishment of a budget 
requirement.  To this end some condition surveys were prepared.  However, it 
was acknowledged that these surveys would only provide an initial view.  At 
that point the budget requirement was set at £880k, although there was an 
expectation that the true cost of the works to could easily be significantly more.  
Once the works were started it became clear that the service houses were in 

Page 6



worse condition than expected.  The works themselves also unearthed further 
issues that needed to be addressed.  Due to the way that the work on the 
service houses is funded (some is refurbishment work and some is 
maintenance work) it is difficult to say with certainty what the overall spend 
needs to be in order to bring the service houses up to an acceptable standard. 

10. During 2019-20 circa £360k was spent on the service houses, with a further 
£550k due to be spent by the end of 2020-21.  Of these sums, around £580k, 
in total, was attributable to the refurbishment programme – the rest being spent 
on reactive maintenance.  This leaves just £300k of the initial £880k budget to 
complete the refurbishment works. 

11. The sum that is expected to be spent on service houses during 2021-22 will be 
in the region of £300k (to cover refurbishment works and reactive maintenance).  
This will not be sufficient to conclude the refurbishment works, but a similar 
investment during 2022-23 should see a significant proportion of the 
refurbishment works completed, provided maintenance works do not need to 
draw too heavily on the available funding. 

12. The sum that can be spent on the service houses cannot exceed a threshold 
that changes each year (depending upon a number of factors).  This threshold 
is important: if it is breached it will not be possible to reclaim a proportion of they 
VAT and this is a considerable sum. 

13. The sale of two of the service houses has brought in £337,500 at the time of 
this report.  It is hoped that the sale of the three remaining houses will see 
further income of between £520,000 and £545,000.  Some fees will need to be 
deducted from these figures, but Members will see that the sale of these surplus 
assets will provide a significant sum. 

Legal Implications 

14. There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

15. There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report. 

Environmental Implications 

16. There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 

CONTACT: DONNA LINTON, CLEMONDS HEY, WINSFORD 
TEL [01606] 868804 
BACKGROUND PAPERS:  NONE 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE FIRE AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF: ESTATES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
DATE: 6TH NOVEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE AND COMMISSIONING  
AUTHOR: ANDREW LEADBETTER 

 

SUBJECT: FIRE STATION MODERNISATION PROGRAMME 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. This report provides information about the Fire Station Modernisation Programme 
(the Programme).  It contains a general update; specific information about Year 
Two of the Programme (and seeks guidance from Members about this) and 
information about the future of the Programme, including the budget. 

Recommended: That Members 

[1]  Note the report; 

[2] Provide guidance in relation to Year Two of the Programme; and 

[3] Consider the budget and funding position before making a decision about 

Year Three of the Programme. 

Background 

Approvals 

2. The Fire Authority committed to the Programme in September 2018.  The 
Programme is concerned with 21 fire stations.  £8.5m was allocated in the capital 
programme, with £3.5m released initially. 
 

3. This Committee agreed the delivery schedule at a meeting in December 2018.  
This is attached to the report as Appendix 1.  At the same meeting Members gave 
some direction to officers about how they wanted the works at Runcorn Fire Station 
to be delivered.   
 

4. In March 2019 this Committee approved the procurement route to secure a 
contractor to deliver the Programme from Year One onwards.  In March 2020 this 
Committee agreed that officers should secure the release of the remaining 
allocated capital funding.  The Fire Authority agreed this in July 2020. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Year Zero 
 
5. In order to get the Programme off to a prompt start a quick route to market was 

followed for the Year Zero works.  The two fire stations that were modernised in 
Year Zero were Bollington and Tarporley.  They were chosen as they were 
considered to be manageable projects which were not expected to be too 
challenging.  Even at this initial stage officers were concerned about the costs of 
the works and it is fair to say that a number of compromises were made.  Our 
experience of working with the contractor on the Year Zero works was not a good 
one.  However, ultimately the works were completed to a decent standard and the 
fire stations were modernised considerably. 

Year One 

6. This was a much bigger undertaking than Year Zero.  It involved the modernisation 
of four fire stations, Birchwood, Middlewich, Runcorn and Sandbach.  However, 
we were working with a new contractor and the experience was very good.  We 
had also learnt some valuable lessons from Year Zero and taken on board the 
comments made by this Committee.   
 

7. The Year One works were completed to a high standard and for the agreed budget.  
This was particularly pleasing given the challenges caused by the Covid-19 
Pandemic.  The works in Year One included additional elements to those delivered 
in Year Zero, but there were still some compromises due to concerns about the 
budget e.g. limited external works were carried out.  The intention will be to pick 
some of these works up using the maintenance budget in future years. 

Information 

Year Two  
 

8. The internal team and the contractor have been working on the pre-construction 
requirements that need to be finalised before we commit to the Year Two works.  
Year Two will see the modernisation of the fire stations in Audlem, Holmes Chapel, 
Northwich and Widnes.   
 

9. For Year Two the approach was changed, with the intention of creating a list of 
requirements that were not considered to involve any significant compromises.  
The requirements also took into account some additional elements, e.g. the need 
to consider the garaging of the Rapid Response Rescue Units (agreed as part of 
the Integrated Risk Management Plan 2020-2024).  In Year Two the team was 
also challenged to come up with an approach that would significantly reduce the 
carbon impact of Widnes Fire Station (it being one of our larger fire stations).  
Environmental enhancements have also been specified at other fire stations.  The 
Year Two works are also intended to be completed in two halves, rather than 
having all four jobs on the go at the same time, which was difficult to manage. 
 

10. The Year Two works are due to start early in the New Year and be completed in 
the first quarter of the next financial year.  However, before officers commit to the 
Year Two works they were keen to explain the budget situation as it is becoming 
increasingly clear that the overall budget will be substantially more than was 
envisaged if Years Three, Four and Five are pursued in the same way as Year 

Page 10



Two.  At this point there is the potential to change the requirements in Year Two 
and therefore reduce the budget.  Whilst this is not what officers would necessarily 
recommend, a list of possible items have been compiled that could be removed 
from the requirements.  Indeed, it would be possible to revisit some of the core 
elements of the Programme, which are listed below, given that these are having a 
significant impact on the budget: 
 

Provision of suitable gym 
Provision of separately accessed community room and ancillary facilities 
Provision of gender-neutral pods 
Provision of garage for the Rapid Response Rescue Units 
 

11. Officers will talk through the requirements at the four fire stations due to be 
modernised in Year Two at the meeting so that Members can consider whether 
they are happy with the direction of the Programme and whether they are 
comfortable to ask the Fire Authority to allocate additional funding at this time. 

Financial Implications 

12. The Programme was originally anticipated to cost circa £8.5m.  However, this 
figure was based on some high level condition surveys and did not take account 
of the full set of requirements to be delivered by the Programme.  It was also 
calculated before the works were market tested. 
 

13. When officers secured the release of the balance of the allocated funding 
Members were made aware of concerns about the overall cost of the Programme.  
However, the anticipated cost of the Programme will be even higher if it proceeds 
along the same lines as Year Two.  To an extent some of the Programme almost 
certainly will need to follow the approach in Year Two, e.g. Rapid Response 
Rescue Units will be deployed from all on-call fire stations and the received 
wisdom is that they need to be garaged. 
 

14. The table below contains the capital costs of Year Zero and Year One. 
 

Year Zero 

Bollington Tarporley   
Total 

£234k £173k   
 

£407k 

Year One 

Birchwood Middlewich Runcorn Sandbach 
Total 

£777k £464k £1.029m £565k 
 

£2.835m 

 
15. Currently, Year Two is expected to cost around £3.46m.  However, this figure is 

not finalised at this point as some elements are still being market testing and 
decisions made by this Committee may have an impact upon it. 
 

16. The total of the costs of Years Zero and One, together with the anticipated cost of 
Year Two (delivering the requirements currently costed) is, therefore £6.7m.  This 
means that there is £1.8m of the initial £8.5m available to proceed with the 

Page 11



Programme.  This will not cover the works that will be required to complete Year 
3 of the Programme.  At the end of Year Two ten fire stations will have been 
modernised, leaving eleven more to complete over Years Three, Four and Five. 
 

17. Colleagues in Estates have prepared a number of projections in the hope that they 
could provide a funding requirement for delivering the rest of the Programme 
(Years Three, Four and Five).  This is normally a fairly difficult task as a number 
of things can change over a three year period, e.g. material price fluctuations, 
labour availability impacting on rates and general inflation.  At present, adding in 
the current uncertainties caused by Brexit and Covid-19 there can be little 
confidence in any projection.  Indeed, they range from circa £15 to circa £20m, but 
obviously depend on many variables.  In view of this it is suggested that we 
concentrate on securing funding for Year Three and then return to Members with 
costs for Year Four next year.  As things stand, bearing in mind that there are two 
sizeable fire stations to modernise in Year Three it is suggested that an additional 
£3m of funding is allocated by the Fire Authority. 
 

18. The currently approved medium term financial plan requires the use all remaining 
available financial reserves to fund the proposed capital strategy including the 
£8.5m budget for this modernisation programme.  If any new or additional capital 
expenditure is approved by the Fire Authority, as discussed above, this will 
therefore almost certainly require financing with additional new borrowing.  Any 
new borrowing will bring associated interest and debt repayment charges that will 
add long term cost pressures to the revenue budget. 

Legal Implications 

19. There are no legal implication arising from the decisions being sought in this 
report. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

20. The Equality and Inclusion Officer has helped to develop the Programme and will 
continue to be involved. 

Environmental Implications 

21. The Programme includes environmental enhancements.  However, some of them 
are not costed in the figures provided earlier in this report.  There is, currently, an 
opportunity to secure external funding for ‘decarbonisation’ and this might assist 
in reducing pressure on the Programme budget.  Officers will outline the 
environmental elements that are being pursued/considered at the meeting. 

CONTACT: DONNA LINTON 
HEADQUARTERS, CLEMONDS HEY, WINSFORD  
TEL [01606] 868804 

Page 12



Station Modernisation Delivery Schedule 

Year 
Financial 

Year 
Cheshire 

East 
Cheshire 

West 
Halton Warrington Total 

zero 2018-19 Bollington Tarporley 2 

1 2019-20 
Middlewich 
Sandbach 

Runcorn 
(major) 

Birchwood 4 

2 2020-21 
Audlem 
Holmes 
Chapel 

Northwich Widnes 4 

3 2021-22 
Congleton 
Knutsford 

Ellesmere 
Port 

(major) 
Malpas 

4 

4 2022-23 
Macclesfield 

(major) 
Poynton 

Frodsham 
Winsford 

4 

5 2023-24 
Nantwich 
Wilmslow 

Stockton 
Heath 

3 

Sub-Total 11 6 2 2 21 

Replace Crewe Chester Warrington 3 

Recent Alsager 
Powey 
Lane 

Lymm 
Penketh 

4 

Total 13 8 2 5 28 

Appendix 1 to Item 3
Estates and Property Committee 

6 November 2020

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE FIRE AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF: ESTATES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
DATE: 6TH NOVEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE AND COMMISSIONING 
AUTHOR: ANDREW LEADBETTER 

 

SUBJECT: CHESTER FIRE STATION 

Purpose of Report 

1. To provide Members with information about progress with the project. 

Recommended: That 

[1]  Members note the report. 

Background 

2. The Fire Authority decided to replace Chester Fire Station with a new building 
in December 2017.  Planning permission was obtained in June 2019.  The Fire 
Authority subsequently decided to increase the environmental performance of 
the building. 

Information 

3. A report prepared by IKG Consulting Limited is attached to this report as 
Appendix 1.  Members will see that, notwithstanding the challenges of operating 
during the current Covid-19 Pandemic the project has progressed well and 
should be completed early in 2021. 

Financial Implications 

4. The capital approval for the project was £5.51m.  Members agreed that a 
contingency of 5% (£275,000) could also be utilised.  An additional £300,000 
was allocated for the environmental enhancement of the building.  The attached 
report explains why the cost of the project is going to exceed the total of the 
capital approvals (and contingency).  Currently, this is showing as circa 
£125,000 and the main reasons are set out in Appendix 1, but delays caused 
by Covid-19 have the potential to cause that figure to increase further. 

Legal Implications 

5. None of the matters covered in this report have legal implications. 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



Equality and Diversity Implications 

6. None of the matters covered in this report have an impact upon equality and 
diversity.  Decisions concerned with equality and diversity were made early in 
the project when the new fire station was being designed. 

Environmental Implications 

7. The environmental enhancements approved by the Fire Authority will mean that 

the new fire station will be zero carbon for regulated energy. 

CONTACT: DONNA LINTON, GOVERNANCE AND CORPORATE PLANNING 

MANAGER 

TEL [01606] 868804 

BACKGROUND PAPERS:  NONE 

Page 16



 

                                                     
 

 

IKG Consulting Limited Registered in England and Wales no: 7325062 at 294 Blackburn Road, Edgworth, Bolton BL7 0PL 

 

Summary Progress Report – Chester Fire Station:  
 
COVID 19 
 

Thus far the impact of COVID on this site has been limited as the work in progress at the time 
of lockdown in March was largely ground works. Whilst there were some challenges around 
material deliveries, with careful management and resequencing of the works the site team have 
been able to minimise the impact. 
 
The site team have, as with all other sites had to provide additional accommodation, 
temperature monitoring and cleaning provision. 
 
Noted below are delays to the provision of site services, in particular electricity and water. This 
has arisen as a result of the furloughing of non-critical staff by Scottish Power and Severn Trent 
Water delaying the processing of new connection applications. 
 
Evidence is now emerging on site as we reach the more labour intensive finishing trades that 
the “second wave” of the pandemic may be more disruptive than the first as critical sub- 
contractors are required to self isolate. In the last month this has affected three sub-contractors 
and caused a disruption to the site of approximately two weeks delay. 
 
This is something that is being monitored closely, though there is little that can be done to 
mitigate this at this stage of the works. 

 
Programme Update: 
 

ISG are currently stating that they will be finished on the contract completion date of 4th January 
2021. We remain of the view that it is tight to achieve this and it will be prudent to allow an 
additional 15 working days in the programme planning to cater for potential delays. 
 
This report therefore continues to advise of a 3 week delay. 

 
The MS Project Programme has been updated to reflect this and a summary of the current dates 
is set out below. 

 

Item 
Original 

Programme at 
Contract Signing 

Original 
Contract Dates 

Current Contract 
Dates 

COVID 19 
Dates (3 week 

delay) 

Section 2 
Completion Date 

27/11/2020 11/12/2020 04/01/21 25/01/21 

Comms Room 
Partial Possession 

30/10/20 13/11/20 01/12/20 11/12/20 

Decant from Temp 
Fire Station 

09/12/20 23/12/20 13/01/21 03/02/21 

Section 3 – Site 
Clearance 

    

Appendix 1 to Item 4  
Estates and Property Committee 

6 November 2020 

Page 17



 

                                                     
 

 

IKG Consulting Limited Registered in England and Wales no: 7325062 at 294 Blackburn Road, Edgworth, Bolton BL7 0PL 

 

Section 3 – Start of 
Works 

14/12/20 28/12/20 18/01/21 08/02/21 

Section 3 – 
Completion of 
Works 

08/01/21 22/01/21 05/02/21 26/02/21 

Station Staff return 
from Ellesmere 
Port 

From 11/01/21 From 25/01/21 From 08/02/21 From 01/03/21 

 
 

The RED BOLD TEXT show the revised programme dates that we should now work to. 
 
Progress of works on site continues to be good, however in the last month two weeks has been 
lost against the critical path as sub-contractors have had operatives who have been forced to 
self isolate. The contractor is working to mitigate this delay, however recent verbal feedback 
suggests that this will not be possible. 
 
We are also currently experiencing further delays with the installation of statutory services such 
as water, electricity and BT. 
 
All three installations are now scheduled, but are substantially delayed from the requested 
installation dates (electricity by 6 months – installed 27/10/20, is the worst example)  

 
Issues: 
 

The Design Stage BREEAM Assessment is now submitted to the BRE and their feedback was 
received on the 23rd October 2020 (6 weeks later than expected). Some minor evidence 
clarification is required prior to issue of the certificate. Meanwhile the progression of the 
evidence for the Construction Stage BREEAM has commenced. 
 

Budget: 
 

The total approved budget for Chester Fire Station is currently £5.81m (including the additional 
£300k approved in April 2020 for additional carbon reduction measures). A 5% contingency on 
the original budget was also allocated: £275,000. 
 
At present the anticipated total project costs are circa £125k in excess of the allocated sums in 
the capital programme. There remains a possibility of costs rising due to claims for delays that 
occurred that were beyond the contractor’s control.  
 
The majority of the overspend is made up of the following items: 
 

 Pre Construction Archaeological Investigations: £70k 
 

 Asbestos discovered in the demolition of the old fire station: £80k 
 

 Asbestos contamination in the ground under the old fire station: £80k 
 

 Costs arising from the delays to the planning approval and the requirement to make a 
second planning submission: £60k 

 

Page 18



 

                                                     
 

 

IKG Consulting Limited Registered in England and Wales no: 7325062 at 294 Blackburn Road, Edgworth, Bolton BL7 0PL 

 

 Unexpectedly high tender returns for the temporary fire station: £60k 
 

 Additional costs for the provision of electrical services to the site: £25k 
 

 Additional costs to accommodate the second fire engine – additional wash pod and 
resting space remodelling: £12k 

 

 The reconnection of the green wave equipment to the upgraded traffic signals: £10k 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE FIRE AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF: ESTATES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
DATE: 6TH NOVEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE AND COMMISSIONING 
AUTHOR: ANDREW LEADBETTER 

 

SUBJECT: TRAINING CENTRE 

Purpose of Report 

1. To provide Members with information about progress with the project. 

Recommended: That 

[1]  Members note the report. 

Background 

2. The Fire Authority decided to create an enhanced training facility at the Sadler 

Road site in September 2017.  Planning permission was obtained in March 

2019.  Work commenced in May 2019. 

Information 

3. A report prepared by IKG Consulting Limited is attached to this report as 
Appendix 1. 

4. Members will see that the project is nearing its conclusion, with the construction 
phase due to be completed in first half of November 2020.  Whilst Covid-19 has 
had an impact, it has been managed well by the contractor, advisers and staff 
on-site and although the works were inevitably slower in some respects, 
momentum on the project was been maintained. 

Financial Implications 

5. The capital approval for the project was £11,000,000.  Members also agreed 
that a contingency of 5%, £550,000, could also be utilised.  As has been 
reported previously the project has encountered some additional costs and the 
budget was under pressure from very early on.  The report at Appendix 1 
explains the key elements that have added to the overall cost.  Currently, if the 
maintenance works (see table in Appendix 1) are rightly ignored (as they should 
be considered to be additional out-of-scope capital works, necessary as part of 
the Training Centre project but relating to parts of the existing building) the 
project is over budget by 6.94%.  Whilst this involves a significant overspend, 
most elements were outside our control.  The final figure is not expected to 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



change significantly, though it will not be known until some time after the works 
are completed. 

Legal Implications 

6. None of the matters covered in this report have legal implications. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

7. None of the matters covered in this report have an impact upon equality and 
diversity.   

Environmental Implications 

8. None of the matters covered in this report have an impact upon the 

environment. 

CONTACT: DONNA LINTON, GOVERNANCE AND CORPORATE PLANNING 

MANAGER 

TEL [01606] 868804 

BACKGROUND PAPERS:  NONE 

Page 22



 

                                                     
 

 

IKG Consulting Limited Registered in England and Wales no: 7325062 at 294 Blackburn Road, Edgworth, Bolton BL7 0PL 

 

Summary Progress Report – Training Centre:  
 
 
Progress Summary & COVID Implications: 

 

The latest reports from ISG and the assessment of the Employers Agent is that the works will 

be completed during week commencing the 9th November 2020. 

 

As described above this will be 13 weeks after the completion date that was expected prior to 

the COVID lockdown being announced on the 23rd March 2020. 

 

Following the announcement of the lockdown the site has experienced considerable difficulties 

with labour availability (due to shielding, furlough and self isolation – no one has tested positive 

to date), sub contractor insolvency and material availability. 

 

The issue having the biggest effect has been the material availability which has arisen as a 

result of manufacturers not being able to social distance in their plants and consequently 

working at reduced capacity when not fully closed. At various times this affected the supply of 

bricks, blocks, plasterboard, paint and glass at critical times in the construction works. 

 

Certain material prices have also increased significantly due to both shortages and increased 

transport costs and distances. These increased costs have not been passed on to the Authority. 

 

In addition, the site managers have hired additional cabins, introduced temperature screening, 

segregated site walkways and increased the site cleaning regime to ensure that social 

distancing can be achieved on site as far as practicable and within the guidance published by 

Public Health England.  

 

Unfortunately whilst the site never actually closed as a result of the COVID 19 Pandemic, 

progress has inevitably slowed. 

 

Despite this work has progressed well and the vehicle workshop refurbishment was completed 

only 3 days late. The ICTS training suite will be handed over to the Authority on the 30/10/2020 

and the remainder of the site week commencing 9th November 2020 – 13 weeks late.   

 

Change Control: 

 

A separate change control summary is regularly provided which captures all issued and planned 

changes to date. Items which are highlighted in Green have agreed costs, items in Yellow have 

provisional costs. This has recently been updated and is correct at the 27th October 2020. This 

does contain a number of recent and disputed claims from the Contractor which are subject to 

further discussion. These are included in order to present a “worse case scenario”. 

 

As work has progressed during the contract there has been a significant number of challenges 

which have required rectification as part of the works, this has included: 

 

Appendix 1 to Item 5  
Estates and Property Committee 

6 November 2020 

Page 23



 

                                                     
 

 

IKG Consulting Limited Registered in England and Wales no: 7325062 at 294 Blackburn Road, Edgworth, Bolton BL7 0PL 

 

 Significant repairs and maintenance to the existing buildings which were out of scope of 

the original contract, e.g. extensive window replacement, rewiring, new fire alarm, roof 

repairs, drainage repairs and fire compartmentation. 

 

 During the building strip out significant asbestos contamination has been found which 

has required remediation, disposal and replacement materials to be fitted. 

 

 At the commencement of the project various delays were encountered with difficulties in 

discharging the contamination-related planning condition, due largely to a difference of 

opinion between the Fire Authority’s specialist and the contamination officer from CWAC. 

Ultimately this resulted in additional, extensive independent chemical testing and a 

significant and costly delay to the commencement of part of the works. The 8 week 

condition discharge process in fact took 26 weeks and delayed the critical path of the 

site works by 11 weeks.  This had a significant financial impact.  

 

 Inevitably due to the delays there have been some increases in costs arising as a result 

of the COVID outbreak. This is largely restricted to the consultants managing the project 

for the Authority and extending the Authority’s insurance cover for the works.  

 
In addition to the challenges above there has been a number of minor variations and costs 

arising from design development, contract remeasures, specification omissions and risk items 

which the project contingency was intended to cover.  

 

Budget: 

 

An updated Project Budget sheet has been prepared.  This includes all the agreed and 

provisional change costs.  

 

The Project Budget sheet is currently showing a projected final project cost which exceeds the 

original budget approval of £11.0m and 5% additional contingency of £550,000 – total 

£11,550,000. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

                                                     
 

 

IKG Consulting Limited Registered in England and Wales no: 7325062 at 294 Blackburn Road, Edgworth, Bolton BL7 0PL 

 

The current budget position is summarised in the table below: 

 

Item £ 
% in excess of 

approved budget 

Budget Approval £11,000,000  

Additional Expenditure:   

Omissions / Remeasurements £177,837 1.61% 

Unforeseen Issues £92,065 0.84% 

Scope Changes / Additions £44,515 0.40% 

Asbestos Remediation £136,631 1.24% 

Ground Contamination Issues 

(very significant delay that incurred 

massive costs that could not be 

avoided). 

£248,482 2.26% 

COVID Related Costs £64,762 0.59% 

Capital Maintenance Works 

(additional to original project scope) 
£513,550 4.67% 

Anticipated Final Expenditure £12,277,842 11.61% 

 

As might be expected on a project of this size that is being delivered during such challenging 

times, there are sums that might be added to the above figure.  Contractors and sub-contractors 

have had to cope with the situation and are likely to have incurred additional costs.  The debate 

that will take place once the project has been completed will focus on where responsibility for 

those costs lies.  At this point out intention will be to resist claims of this nature. 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE FIRE AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF: ESTATES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
DATE: 6TH NOVEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE AND COMMISSIONING 
AUTHOR: ANDREW LEADBETTER 

 

SUBJECT: CREWE FIRE STATION 

Purpose of Report 

1. To present an overview of feasibility work concerned with the Crewe Fire 
Station site.  To describe the current position in relation to the restrictive 
covenants affecting the land and potential impact of HS2.  To allow Members 
to determine whether they wish to recommend to the Fire Authority that 
additional funding is allocated. 

Recommended: That Members 

[1]  Note the report 

[2] Indicate which option they wish officers to take forward 

[3] Recommend to the Fire Authority that it allocates additional funding
  

Background 

2. In September 2018, Members committed to proceed with a joint fire and police 
facility on the Crewe Fire Station site. Unfortunately, the feasibility work 
ultimately led to the conclusion that the facility could not be created without 
spending well in excess of what was felt to represent value for money.  Since 
that project ended officers have been working with external advisers on various 
options for the site.  Work has also continued to attempt to release an old 
restrictive covenant affecting the site.  More recently, correspondence has been 
received about HS2. 

Information 

Options 

3. A paper has been prepared by IKG Consulting Limited.  It summarises the 
feasibility work that has been done and assesses the various options that have 
been considered.  The paper describes the options; compares the outline 
budgets of each of the options; comments on risk; and compares the relevant 
build programmes for each of the options.  The paper also covers some key 
issues: planning; zero carbon; the retention, or demolition of the community 
bungalow; and the requirement for a temporary fire station.  The paper is going 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



through final checks before being released and will be supplied to Members on 
the 3rd November. 

Restrictive Covenant 

4. The title documentation disclosed a restrictive covenant that restricts the height 
of any construction on the site.  The training tower needs to be higher than the 
height in the covenant.  The covenant appears to have been intended to protect 
a proposed airport (in the deeds a reference is made to aerodrome) and dates 
back to the 1930s.  It is clearly of no relevance now.  Both Cheshire East Council 
and the Crown have the benefit of the covenant and after some initial difficulties 
we now have contacts at each organisation and are hopeful of making progress 
in having the covenant relinquished. 

HS2 

5. Initial inquiries of Cheshire East Council were encouraging in that the Council 
did not have any plans to make changes to the roundabout/highways that adjoin 
the site as a result of HS2.  This was a particular concern when the proposed 
joint fire and police facility was being considered as it would have involved the 
site being developed to its full extent – ever inch of the land could have been 
critical.  

6. Week commencing 19th October a letter was received from HS2 and this is 
attached to this report as Appendix 1.  Members will see that the letter is rather 
equivocal and it is not clear what impact, if any, HS2 will have on our site.  A 
request has been lodged with HS2 to attempt to ascertain what the letter means 
to the Fire Authority. 

Financial Implications 

7. At this point, the Fire Authority has committed £6m to the project.  When 
Members receive the paper from IKG Consulting Limited they will see that the 
options that are being considered will cost more than the allocated funding.  
Therefore, further funding will need to be allocated for the project to progress. 

Legal Implications 

8. The restrictive covenant will need to be relinquished before the project 
proceeds.  The situation with HS2 will need to be clarified satisfactorily before 
the project proceeds. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

9. The project will deliver a building that will take into account equality and diversity 
requirements. 

Environmental Implications 

10. The project will deliver a building that will be a considerable improvement over 
the existing buildings which are not environmentally efficient. 

Page 28



CONTACT: DONNA LINTON, CLEMONDS HEY, WINSFORD 
TEL [01606] 868804 
BACKGROUND PAPERS:  NONE 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 to Item 6
Estates and Property Committee
6 November 2020

Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



CHESHIRE FIRE AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF: ESTATES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 
DATE: 6TH NOVEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE AND COMMISSIONING 
AUTHOR: ANDREW LEADBETTER 

 

SUBJECT: WILMSLOW EMERGENCY SERVICES FACILITY 

Purpose of Report 

1. To provide a brief update about work to-date arising from the decision to 
introduce a day crewing duty system at Wilmslow Fire Station. 

Recommended: That Members 

[1]  Note the report. 

Background 

2. In July 2020 the Fire Authority approved the Integrated Risk Management Plan 
2020-2024.  The Plan included the proposal to introduce a day crewing duty 
system at Wilmslow Fire Station. 

3. A day crewing duty system operates with firefighters accommodated in service 
houses either adjacent to, or close to the fire station.  This means that nine 
service houses need to be provided in Wilmslow if the day crewing duty system 
is to be introduced. 

Information 

4. Wilmslow Fire Station is situated directly adjacent to the ambulance and police 
stations.  A plan is attached to this report as Appendix 1.   

5. Discussions with colleagues from North West Ambulance Service and Cheshire 
Constabulary identified the potential to create an emergency services facility in 
Wilmslow.  Further discussions have taken place recently involving the Chair 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner and the parties are keen to press 
ahead with feasibility work.  As a result a project has been commenced which 
is focused on testing out the feasibility of creating an emergency services facility 
in Wilmslow. 

6. The project would need to deliver a number of outcomes and the respective 
inputs of the parties would need to be acceptable to each of them.  The 
outcomes would include: a fit for purpose emergency services facility; lower 
running costs; capital receipts from the sale of surplus land; nine service 
houses; and closer working relationships.  The parties might provide land, an 
interest in land, or a financial payment. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



7. The project is expected to be delivered in three stages: 

Stage One: Feasibility, Decision-Making; Legal Arrangements and Formal 
Commitment 

Stage Two:  Planning, Land Transactions, Procurement, Building Work 

Stage Three: Moves, New Staffing Arrangements 

8. It is hoped that Stage One can be completed by the end of March 2021, but it 
is acknowledged that this is ambitious and will depend, very much, on the 
project being adequately resourced.  To this end officers are currently procuring 
some advisers to assist with key aspects of the feasibility work.  A working 
group has also met and is beginning to consider the activities that need to be 
completed during Stage One. 

Financial Implications 

9. At this point, the financial implications of pursuing the project are not known.  
However, it is believed that the costs associated with Stage One will be no more 
than £50,000 and this can be funded from within the overall currently approved 
2020/21 revenue budget.  As this project is being driven by the Fire Authority’s 
requirement to introduce a new crewing system in Wilmslow the costs 
associated with the feasibility work are expected to be funded by the Fire 
Authority.  However, if the project proceeds the costs of the project will be 
shared by the participating parties. 

Legal Implications 

10. At this stage there are no legal implications.  It will not be possible for the Joint 
Legal Team to advise both fire and police.  Therefore, the Director of 
Governance and Commissioning is procuring external legal advisers to 
represent the Fire Authority. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

11. The project will deliver a building that will take into account equality and diversity 
requirements. 

Environmental Implications 

12. The project will deliver a building that will be a considerable improvement over 
the existing buildings which are not environmentally efficient. 

CONTACT: DONNA LINTON, CLEMONDS HEY, WINSFORD 
TEL [01606] 868804 
BACKGROUND PAPERS:  NONE 

Page 38



 

Appendix 1 to Item 7  

Estates and Property Committee 

6 November 2020 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1D Minutes of the Estates and Property Committee
	2 Service Housing
	3 Fire Station Modernisation Programme
	Item 3 - Appendix 1 - Station Modernisation Delivery Schedule

	4 Chester Fire Station
	Item 4 - Appendix 1 - Chester Fire Station

	5 Training Centre
	Item 5 - Appendix 1 - Training Centre

	6 Crewe Fire Station
	Item 6 - Appendix 2 - Crewe Fire Station - HS2

	7 Wilmslow Emergency Services Facility
	Item 7 - Appendix 1 - Wilmslow Emergency Services Facility


